
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

City Council Workshop & Meeting 
Agenda 

   April 1, 2024  
Auburn Hall, Council Chambers 

                                                                                                               
 
 
5:30 P.M. City Council Workshop  

A. Auburn School Department Budget Presentation –Dr. Connie Brown 
B. City Manager’s Budget Presentation – Phil Crowell 
C. Council Budget Discussion and Review of Council Priorities 

 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Gerry 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or a citizen requests, in 
which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence 
on the agenda. 

 
1. Order 41-04012024* 

Setting the date for the School Budget Validation Referendum Election (June 11, 2024). 
 

II. Minutes 

• March 18, 2024, Regular Council Meeting 

• March 25, 2024, Special Council Meeting 
 

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

• Recognition - Camden Goddard - 2024 MRPA Citizen Volunteer Award Recipient 

• Communication – Request for Lake Stewards of Maine funding from the City of Auburn for FY2024  
 

IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 
to City business or any item that does not appear on the agenda.   
 

V. Unfinished Business  
 

1. Ordinance 01-01022024 
Amending Chapter 60 of the zoning ordinance to include Effective Date and Applicability Date of 
Ordinance 26-11202023. Public hearing and second reading. 
 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

2. Order 39-03182024   
Disposition of building located at 46 Fair Street under dangerous building statute. Public hearing for 
parties with interest in property. 
 

VI. New Business  
 
1. Order 42-04012024 

Authorizing the City Clerk to consolidate to one polling place for the July 9, 2024, Special Municipal 
Election. Public hearing and vote. 
 

2. Order 43-04012024 
Adopting the 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 
 

3. Order 44-04012024 
Approving the Mass Gathering for the Auburn Lobster Festival event scheduled for Saturday, May 11, 
20204. Public hearing and vote. 
 

4. Order 45-04012024 
Approving the temporary liquor license for an Incorporated Civic Organization for the Lobster Festival 
event scheduled for Saturday, May 11, 2024. Public hearing and vote. 
 

5. Order 46-04012024 
Approving the Annual Report to the Maine State Housing Authority for Tax Year 4/1/2023-3/31/2024. 
 

6. Resolve 03-04012024 
Adopting the Androscoggin County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 2024. 
 

VII. Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 
to City business or any item that does not appear on the agenda 
 

VIII. Reports  
a. Mayor’s Report  
b. City Councilors’ Reports  
c. City Manager Report 

 
IX. Executive Sessions – Economic development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) which premature 

disclosure would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the City. 
 
X. Adjournment 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 1, 2024     
 
Author:  Mark Conrad, School Business Manager 
 

Subject:  FY 2025 School Budget Discussion  
 
Information:  The School Committee is currently reviewing the FY 2025 budget proposal submitted by the 
Superintendent of Schools.  The FY 2025 operating budget (including Adult Education) proposed by the 
Superintendent is increasing by 5.4% to $62,234.945.  The largest single impact in this budget is the loss of 
federal ESSER (pandemic) funding for 15 staff positions.  This budget eliminates five (5) positions from the 
operating budget and nine (9) positions funded by ESSER, transfers six (6) positions from ESSER to the operating 
budget, and adds one (1) new position to the operating budget (see attached summary). 
 
For the first time in three years this budget includes a CIP request totaling $983,000, including a new fire alarm 
panel for Park Ave. ($32,000), a district-wide HVAC controls software platform migration ($251,000), and a new 
boiler room at Fairview ($700,000). 
 
The revenue budget includes a 6.0% increase in State subsidy, a $350,000 increase in the use of fund balance 
funds, to $2,350,000, and an expenditure of $211,000 in remaining revenue from the Edward Little naming 
rights campaign.  The local share is increasing by $1,069,062, or 5.6%, to $20,866,210 in FY 2025. 
 
The School Committee is scheduled to approve a school budget and forward it to the City Council on May 1, 2024. 
 
City Budgetary Impacts:  TBD  
 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Discussion 
 
 
Previous Meetings and History:  N/A 
 
 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments:  

Superintendent’s FY 2025 Budget Message  Budget Summary by Warrant Article 
Summary of Personnel Changes  General Fund Revenue Budget 



1 

 

To:   Auburn School Committee  

From:   Cornelia Brown PhD Superintendent of Schools  

RE:   Budget Message for 2024-2025 Auburn School Department Operating Budget  

Date:   February 28, 2024  

 

Introduction:  

 

It is somewhat bittersweet to present my last operating budget for the Auburn School 

Department (ASD). During the last four (4) years I believe that we have established an excellent 

process for budget consideration, deliberation, and adoption. I sincerely appreciate the School 

Committee’s due diligence on examination of budget priorities, and ensuring that the proposed 

budget furthers the goals established by the School Committee. My goal was and remains to 

improve the educational outcomes for our students.  

 

I believe that our staff is the most important asset we have. Please be reminded that nearly 80% 

of our cost(s) are related to people, and appropriately so. Every single person in the ASD has a 

critical role to play in the education of our students. There are no superfluous positions and 

before anything is included in the proposed operating budget it goes through a rigorous 

evaluation process.  

 

My philosophy around effective budget processes is to provide clear, unambiguous information 

in a transparent manner.  

 

The Auburn School Committee is considering the following goals: 

 

Student Outcomes 

 

The School Department will ensure high achievement for all students supported by a strong, 

rigorous curriculum.  

● Graduation Rate: The graduation rate will reach or exceed 95% by 2025  

● District Mandated Testing: The ASD will meet or exceed state proficiency rates by 2025  

● Sub-populations: The ASD will reduce disparities in student outcomes across 

demographics.  

 

Communication 

 

Through various means, the ASD will continue to communicate clearly with stakeholders to 

foster relationships, maintain trust, increase engagement and create a sense of belonging for all 

school community members.  

 

 

 

 



2 

Master Plan for Facilities  

 

The ASD will utilize the Facilities Assessment to create a Master Plan to address the capacity, 

sufficiency, and structural quality of all ASD facilities.  

 

School Committee Self-Evaluation  

 

The School Committee will implement an annual self-evaluation process.  

 

Role of ESSER: 

 

The development of the 2024-2025 ASD operating budget is complicated by the end of the 

COVID-related funds commonly known and understood as ESSER. For a period of time I have 

been cautioning the School Committee that there is a pending funding cliff with the end of these 

funds and now the cliff is here. As of February 28, 2024 the ASD has fifteen (15) staff positions 

being funded through ESSER for a total of $924,875. These positions are as follows: 6 

teachers, 1 nurse’s aide, 1 social worker, 5 educational technicians, 1 instructional technology 

coach, and 1 literacy coach. 

 

Trying to stay within reasonable budget parameters, I have incorporated some, but not all, of the 

ESSER positions within the proposed 2024-2025 ASD operating budget. At this time, I 

recommend transferring 2 teaching positions from ESSER to the operating budget (EACS and 

Washburn Elementary), 1 social worker’s position (Sherwood Heights), 1 educational technician 

(ELHS), 1 nurse's aide (Walton), and 1 district-wide math coach who previously served as the 

instructional technology coach.   

 

We are not able to include 4 teaching positions, 4 educational technician positions, and a 

district-wide literacy coach currently funded through ESSER. The schools affected by these 

ESSER reductions include EACS, Washburn, Park Avenue, Fairview, Sherwood and ELHS.  

Each of the staff members in these positions will be moved into existing vacancies.  

 

The ESSER budget also funds the off-site suspension center run by Community Youth 

Services, at a cost of $65,000. These costs are transferred to the FY 2025 operating budget to 

maintain critical services for at-risk students. 

 

Proposed Budget for 2024-2025: $62,234,945 (including Adult Education) 

 

It is my pleasure to submit to you for your consideration the recommended operating budget to 

support the needs of our students in the Auburn School Department for the 2024-2025 School 

Year. As proposed, the Auburn School Department budget is $62,234,945, an increase of 

$3,163,656 or 5.4%. The Mil rate for education would be $9.24 an increase of .47 based on 

current assessed values. On a home assessed at $150,000 it would mean a $70.97 increase on 

an annual basis.  

 



3 

We are eliminating 4 regular teaching positions from the ASD operating budget (AMS, 

Sherwood, Fairview, and Graphic Arts at ELHS) and a special education Team Leader (Walton).  

The budget does include one new teaching position, a special education behavior support 

teacher (BCBA). 

 

As proposed, the budget anticipates a 12% increase in health insurance premium costs and an 

overall increase of $822,572 because more employees are opting to take our health insurance.  

A new payroll tax to pay for expanded FMLA leave required by the State of Maine Is budgeted 

at $288,378. There are allowances for increase(s) associated with settled contractual 

agreement(s) with the Auburn Education Association Teachers’ Unit, the Administrators’ Unit 

and the Non-Affiliated Unit. Another substantial cost driver in the proposed 2024-2025 ASD 

budget is an increase in Special Education of $1,104,021 or 8.6%. This increase includes 

$450,000 for the MaineCare SEED match and $227,091 for Out-of-District placements. 

 

Revenues:  

 

The Auburn School Department received the ED 279 in late January. While the figures are 

anticipated but not enacted (the Legislature will take that action later this session) at this time I 

expect that our subsidy from the State of Maine will be $29,231,738, an increase of $1,651,087 

or 6% in additional state aid. We will also receive $8,596,809 in Debt Service for Edward Little 

High School and $492,966 for Park Avenue Elementary School. The total increase in State Aid 

will be $1,658,474, or 4.5%. I propose increasing the revenue from the Auburn School 

Department Fund Balance to $2,350,000, an increase of $350,000.  

 

From the City of Auburn, I am proposing increasing revenue from $19,797,148 to  

$20,866,210, an increase of $1,069,062 or 5.6%.  

 

Cost Centers:  

 

Pursuant to 20-A MRSA Section 1485 a school budget, including a municipal school budget, is 

divided into eleven cost categories: (1) Regular Education (2) Special Education (3) Career and 

Technical Education (4) Other Instruction (5) Student and Staff Support (6) System 

Administration (7) School Administration (8) Transportation (9) Facilities and Maintenance (10) 

Debt Service/Other Commitments and (11) Other Commitments.  Adult Education is also 

included in the Auburn School Department operating budget.  I will now review each Cost 

Center noting change(s).  

 

Cost Center (1): Regular Education  

 

Cost Center (1) includes the cost of regular education (personnel, supplies, books, and the 

cost(s) associated with regular education collective bargaining agreement(s). As proposed this 

cost center is up $1,128,917. Notably, this cost center includes transferring 2 elementary 

teaching positions from ESSER into the operating budget at East Auburn Community School 

and Washburn Elementary School, along with a district-wide math instructional coach. 



4 

 

Cost Center (2): Special Education  

 

Cost Center 2 is increasing $1,104,021. 

 

The increase in SEED this year is significant. School districts and private schools are able 

to bill the federal Medicaid program for some special education services, through 

MaineCare. However, the federal government only partially covers the cost of those 

services. Private schools can then bill sending districts for the cost of services to students 

that are not reimbursed by Medicaid, and that is known as the "SEED match".  SEED costs 

are being driven by recent DOE-approved rate increases to private schools of up to 44%. 

 

Expenditures Associated with Out of District Placements:  

 

Year Budget Actual Difference 

    

2015-2016 $ 1,617,819 $ 1,650,831  ($ 33,012) 

2016-2017 $ 1,667,819  $ 1,964,889 ($ 297,070) 

2017-2018 $ 1,923,039 $ 2,635,915 ($ 712,876) 

2018-2019 $ 2,056,544 $ 1,916,349 $140,194  

2019-2020 $ 2,075,490 $ 2,275,992 ($ 200,502) 

2020-2021 $ 2,410,305 $ 2,445,125 ($ 34,820) 

2021-2022 $ 2,908,586 $ 2,047,950 $ 860,636 

2022-2023 $ 3,135,490 $ 2,990,386 $ 145,104 

2023-2024 $ 3,880,600 — — 

2024-2025 $ 4,107,691     

 

 

School Year # of Tuition Students 

 

2019-2020 62 



5 

2020-2021 64 

2021-2022 60 

2022-2023 62 

2023-2024 61 

2024-2025 64 

 

 

Cost Center (3):  

 

The Lewiston Regional Technical Center receives subsidies for both their programs at LRTC 

and at ELHS from the Maine Department of Education. We do not budget any revenues or 

expenditures.  

 

Cost Center (4): Other Instruction (Includes Athletics and Co-Curricular):  

 

Cost(s) associated with this center include restoring the First Football team ($9,500) and an 

increase in AMS athletic equipment from $5,960 to $17,370. Overall this Cost Center is up 

$60,212 or 6.7%.  

 

Cost Center (5): Student and Staff Support:  

 

The primary driver(s) for this cost center are: re-classifying a social worker’s position from 

Special Education into Student and Staff support, moving a social worker currently in ESSER 

into the operating budget (at Sherwood), and moving a nurse’s aide position from ESSER into 

the operating budget (at Walton).  

 

This budget includes a proposal to convert the technology integrator position, currently on a 

teaching contract, into a year-round software support position, with no budget impact. This need 

is driven by the continued integration of software into operating and instructional systems. I plan 

to bring a new job description for this position to the Finance Committee later this year. 

 

Cost Center (6): System Administration  

 

The most significant increase in this account is the new accounting/HR software package 

(MUNIS) at a cost of $187,687. This is a “must-do” as the current package (ADS) is only 

minimally supported now and is being phased out. Additionally, this is consistent with a strong 



6 

recommendation from the auditors to improve the reconciliation process with the City of Auburn. 

This account also includes a 5% increase for the non-affiliated staff. This amount is in concert 

with the organized units.  

 

Cost Center (7): School Administration  

 

This cost center is up $282,154 and reflects the recently ratified Collective Bargaining 

Agreement with the Auburn Administrators’ Association. This cost center also reflects the costs 

associated with the increased usage of our health insurance plan. By way of example, this cost 

center includes administrative assistants in each of our schools. I have increased the health 

insurance line for these employees from $139,301 to $201,281 which is an increase of $61,980 

or 44.49%, based on current participation in our health insurance plans.  

 

Cost Center (8): Transportation and Buses  

 

This cost center is up $264,610 or 12.1%.  As with the support positions covered in Cost Center 

7, more of our staff members are taking the School Department’s health insurance, an increase 

in the number of paid days per driver, and repair costs for buses increasing by $62,449.  

 

Cost Center (9): Facilities and Maintenance:  

 

This Cost Center is down! I am showing a reduction of ($385,820). The reason for this reduction 

is our debt service costs are declining by $162,276. Further, we have a better handle on the 

utilities cost(s) at Edward Little High School and have had good results in bidding out energy for 

the coming year. Therefore, we believe we can reduce the overall cost of utilities by $239,925.  

 

This article also includes a first interest payment of $16,250 for a $1 million capital 

improvements bond. Capital improvement requests will include migrating all buildings to a new 

HVAC controls software platform, and full replacement of the Fairview boiler room, based on 

recommendations from the work of Harriman and EEI. 

 

Cost Center (10): Debt Service  

 

This article is declining by ($30,105). 

 

Cost Center (11): Crossing Guards:  

 

No Changes  

 

Adult Education: 

 

The Adult Education budget is increasing by $33,969, or just under 10%, reflecting a significant 

increase in State subsidy funds.  There is no change in the local contribution to Adult Education.  

This increase will largely be used to expand program opportunities. 



7 

 

 



Auburn School Department

FY 2025 Budget Process

Proposed Staffing Changes (FTEs) as Presented by the Superintendent

Reg.
 Teac

her

SP
ED T

each
er

Guid
/S

oc. 
W

kr
.

Reg.
 E

d. T
ech

.

SP
ED E

d. T
ech

.

Oth
er

Tota
l

Com
m

ent

Positions Eliminated from Operating Budget:

Article 1 4.0 4.0

Article 2 1.0 1.0

Article 5 0.0

TOTAL 4.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.0

Position Eliminated from ESSER:

Article 1 5.0 3.0 8.0

Article 2 1.0 1.0

Article 5 0.0

TOTAL 5.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 1.0 0.0 9.0

Position Transferred from ESSER to Operating Budget:

Article 1 3.0 3.0

Article 2 1.0 1.0

Article 5 1.0 1.0 2.0 Other:  Nurses aide at Walton

TOTAL 3.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 6.0

New Positions:

Article 1 0.0

Article 2 1.0 1.0 New BCBA teaching position

Article 5 0.0

TOTAL 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0



Auburn School Department

FY 2025 Budget Process

Budget by Warrant Article (As Proposed by the Superintendent)

Article Purpose

FY 2024            

Approved

 FY 2025           

Proposed $ Change % Change

1 Regular Instruction $19,300,554 $20,429,471 $1,128,917 5.8%

2 Special Education $12,882,836 $13,986,857 $1,104,021 8.6%

3 Career and Technical Education $0 $0 $0 ---

4 Other Instruction $898,147 $958,359 $60,212 6.7%

5 Student and Staff Support $3,806,698 $4,219,312 $412,614 10.8%

6 System Administration $1,200,966 $1,492,010 $291,044 24.2%

7 School Administration $2,413,311 $2,695,465 $282,154 11.7%

8 Transportation and Buses $2,178,859 $2,443,469 $264,610 12.1%

9 Facilities Maintenance $5,679,257 $5,293,437 ($385,820) -6.8%

10 Debt Service/Other Commitments $10,329,269 $10,299,164 ($30,105) -0.3%

11 All Other Expenditures $39,644 $41,685 $2,041 5.1%

Total - Operating Budget $58,729,542 $61,859,229 $3,129,687 5.3%

Adult Education $341,747 $375,716 $33,969 9.9%

Total - All Articles $59,071,289 $62,234,945 $3,163,656 5.4%

Excluding Debt Service & Adult Ed. $48,400,273 $51,560,065 $3,159,792 6.5%

\\10.192.10.7\Common\General\Budget\FY 25\FY 2025 article summary

2/29/2024



FY 2025 Budget Process

Auburn School Department

General Fund Revenue Budget (As Proposed by the Superintendent)

Fiscal Year 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025
Actual Actual Actual Approved Proposed Variance Percentage

State/EPS Model
Subsidy $25,975,376 $28,656,518 $28,347,708 $27,580,651 $29,231,738 $1,651,087 106.0%
Debt Service-ELHS $0 $1,554,035 $6,235,863 $8,568,985 $8,596,809 $27,824 100.3%
Debt Service-Park Ave $579,894 $560,117 $534,544 $513,402 $492,966 ($20,436) 96.0%
Total State $26,555,270 $30,770,670 $35,118,115 $36,663,039 $38,321,513 $1,658,474 104.5%
Local
Minimum Local 15671-A $16,272,338 $16,031,338 $14,867,518 $15,245,365 $15,589,990 $344,625 102.3%
Local Only Debt Service $102,473 $311,789 $894,187 $1,187,586 $1,155,649 ($31,937) 97.3%
Additional Local $1,322,309 $1,486,251 $3,195,978 $3,150,553 $3,906,927 $756,374 124.0%
Total Local $17,697,120 $17,829,378 $18,957,683 $19,583,504 $20,652,566 $1,069,062 105.5%

Other
State Agency Client/SOS $187,493 $58,909 $21,211 $20,000 $20,000 $0 100.0%
MeCare Reimbursement $148,939 $126,230 $104,156 $100,000 $100,000 $0 100.0%
Franklin Tuition $58,249 $96,617 $111,012 $60,000 $100,000 $40,000 166.7%
Rental Properties (RETC) $58,000 $58,000 $58,000 $0 $0 $0 ---
Child Care $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0 100.0%
Gate Receipts $0 $32,557 $31,545 $33,000 $34,150 $1,150 103.5%
Revenue - Naming Rights $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $211,000 $11,000 105.5%
Miscellaneous $22,548 $357,657 $83,314 $20,000 $20,000 $0 100.0%
Total Other $525,229 $779,969 $459,237 $483,000 $535,150 $52,150 110.8%
Fund Balance -$                  $0 $0 $2,000,000 $2,350,000 350,000$      117.5%
Total General Operating $44,777,619 $49,380,017 $54,535,035 $58,729,542 $61,859,229 $3,129,687 105.33%

Adult Education
State  $95,639 $94,617 $94,354 $88,103 $122,072 $33,969 138.6%
Local $200,141 $213,702 $207,192 $213,644 $213,644 $0 100.0%
Other (Tuition) $8,289 $7,800 $10,400 $40,000 $40,000 $0 100.0%

Total Adult Education $304,069 $316,119 $311,946 $341,747 $375,716 $33,969 109.94%

Grand Total Revenue $45,081,688 $49,696,136 $54,846,982 $59,071,289 $62,234,945 $3,163,656 105.36%



Fiscal Year 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025
Actual Actual Actual Approved Proposed Variance Percentage

Increase in Lcoal Share - Debt Service $1,187,586 $1,155,649 ($31,937) -0.2%
Increase in Local Share - Operations (Including AE) $18,609,562 $19,710,561 $1,100,999 5.7%

$19,797,148 $20,866,210 $1,069,062 5.6%

City Property Valuation (Current 2024) $2,259,431,378
Mil Rate For Education (Total) 9.24
Change on $150K home 0.47 $70.97

Note:  the current City Property Valuation will be updated (and increasing) before a tax rate is set for the FY 2025 budget.

\\10.192.10.7\Common\General\Budget\FY 25\FY 2025 revenue budget

2/29/2024



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 1, 2024       
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  City Manager’s Preliminary Budget Presentation for FY2025  
 
Information:  City Manager Phil Crowell will present his FY2025 preliminary budget to the Mayor and City 
Council 
 
 
 
City Budgetary Impacts:  To be determined  
 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Discussion  
 
 
Previous Meetings and History: Budget discussions began at the February 3rd Council retreat and department 
presentations began on February 20th, then March 4th, March 11th, March 18th, and March 25th. 
 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments:  

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 1, 2024       
 
Author: Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk  
 

Subject:  Council Budget Discussion and Review of Council Priorities  
 
Information:  This is an opportunity for the Council to have another conversation regarding the FY2025 budget 
and to review Council priorities. 
 
 
 
City Budgetary Impacts:  To be determined  
 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Discussion  
 
 
Previous Meetings and History: Discussions regarding budget and Council goals began at the February 3, 2024 
Council retreat. Department presentations began on February 20th, and continued on March 4th, March 11th, 
March 18th, and March 25th.  
 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments:  

 



Lake
Auburn

natural
resources

downtown
district

industry
clusters

transit

education
comms

plan

pedestrian
connectivity

infra-
structure

arts +
culture

neighbor-
hoods

2023-25 AUBURN CITY COUNCIL

Facilities
EMS service delivery
PS staff modeling assessment
Traffic safety

PUBLIC
SAFETY

Solid waste/recycling/composting
Bulky waste program
River connectivity

SUSTAINABILITY
+ NATURAL
RESOURCES

GROWTH +
INVESTMENT

Enhance programming for all ages
Visibility of Rec programs
Event planning
Outdoor recreation assets
Greenspace/trail connectivity

RECREATION

Auburn/Lewiston Municipal Airport
9-1-1 services
County services/facilities
Transit
Regional partnerships

INTERLOCAL
INITIATIVES

Comp Plan/zoning
Master planning
Revaluation
Charter review
Strategic Plan

Community engagement
Mall development
Housing plan
Homeless initiatives
Infrastructure assessment

PLANNING

STRATEGIC PLAN
RECOMMENDATIONS
11 final strategic recommendations
from the city’s 2019 Strategic Plan. 

CITY COUNCIL
PRIORITIES

The Auburn City Council strives to ensure government transparency 
and accessibility; welcome and encourage participation and 
engagement; and balance tradition with growth and innovation. 

Establish innovation center/technology hub
Support workforce growth
Economic growth/sustainability
Investment in education

Downtown revitalization
Road infrastructure



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 

 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 1, 2024   Order: 41-04012024 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject: Scheduling the School Budget Validation Referendum Election to be held on June 11, 2024 
 
Information:  
Title M.R.S.A. 20-A, Section 2307 requires Municipalities to conduct a School Budget Validation Referendum 

Election each year. 

The date is consistent with previous years, and there is a cost savings when holding this election at the same 

time as a State election which is normally the second Tuesday in June. It also results in better voter turnout.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage of this order. 
 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 
 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:     
 

Attachments: Order  



 

 

Richard S. Whiting, Ward One 

Benjamin J. Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Adam R. Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy M. Cowan, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Sr., Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 41-04012024 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby sets the date to hold the School Budget Validation 

Referendum Election for Tuesday, June 11, 2024. 

 











 

 

Phil Crowell, City Manager    February 21, 2024 
City of Auburn 
27 Pine Street 
Lewiston, ME 04240 
 
Dear Phil: 
It is with great excitement that I would like to inform you that Auburn Recreation Department/ Unified Sports volunteer 
Camden Goddard is the 2024 recipient MRPA Citizen Volunteer Award as presented by the Maine Recreation and Park 
Association. For more information on the history of this award and criteria for being recognized, please go to our page at 
Association Awards - Maine Recreation and Parks Association (merpa.org) 
 
  Camden was nominated by Sara Parker, who works in the Auburn Recreation Department.  Sara wrote this about Camden 
in her nomination application: 
 
“Camden Goddard, our youngest volunteer (9), is one of the most loyal, dedicated, and passionate people to have 
as a part of our Unified Sports programs for the last 2 years. His older brother, Jackson, is a participant in our 
programs; unified sports provide athletic opportunities for youth with intellectual and physical disabilities. When 
their mom signed Jackson up for our inaugural Unified Soccer season last year, Camden approached us eager to 
help out. From that day forward, he has yet to miss a session. Following our successful soccer season, we laid 
out our Unified Basketball program/clinic - Camden's drill station (passing and shooting), was a fan favorite. He 
worked with players individually, and in groups, to help them learn dribbling, passing, and proper shooting 
techniques. His encouragement and patience with each player made a huge difference in their (first, for many) 
athletic experience. Along with the time he spends with us at the rec department, Camden also assists our local 
little league's Unified Baseball program; Buddy Ball.  
 
Camden is always willing to take an athlete by the hand, coach, encourage, and lead them. He is unafraid to 
speak up for those who cannot and ensures that everyone gets their chance to shine. He is everyone's favorite 
cheerleader, and is a true asset to all of the Unified programs in our community; we are so lucky to have him on 
our team.” 
 
 Camden will be honored at our annual awards banquet on Monday, March 18, 2024 at the Samoset Resort in Rockport, 
Maine.  The dinner will be held at 6:30pm and we would like to extend an invitation to you and any other city 
administration who would like to attend. Dinner tickets are $50.00 each and can be reserved by accessing this link: 
MRPA Award Winner Banquet Tickets 
 
 Please let me know if you have any questions! 
 
 Sincerely, 

Lisa 
Lisa Thompson, CPRP 
MRPA Awards Committee Chair 
 
 
Cc: Deb Smith, Executive Director 

https://www.merpa.org/professional-members/association-awards/
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fforms.gle%2fWCvd8RQbkeDHJ9iP6&c=E,1,V5AdbvF9zIDs43ubh7vNTCY0N3-kvYhW9j1WlfJa4PgHUVa29vibC-9iSuqep1F7f8Ekkzd5d7YA0wTLhPPwA2SHxQHF7H3vnR1PzFXuSbxyV-7xbi1LFF2g&typo=1






 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
 
 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 1, 2024     Ordinance: 01-01022024 
 
Author: Eric J. Cousens, Director of Planning & Permitting   
 
Subject:  Public Hearing, Second and Final Reading on an Ordinance amendment adding Sec. 60-1383. Effective 
Date and Applicability Date of Ordinance #26-11202023. 
 
Information:  The City Council requested that the Planning Board consider the proposed amendment at their 
February meeting. The Board postponed a decision after Public Hearing to ask the Council for information and 
reasons for the proposed delayed applicability date.   The ordinance being considered for delay is described in 
more detail below.  This zoning map amendment is evidenced by Ordinance #26-11202023 relating to the 
rezoning of approximately 60 acres in parts of City Assessor’s Parcel ID 289-001, 289-002, and 277-026 from the 
Agriculture and Resource Protection (AGRP) zoning district to the General Business (GB) zoning district which 
became effective on December 9, 2023 pursuant to Section 2.6(C) of the City Charter. The City Council 
responded to the Planning Board’s request at the March 4th, 2024 meeting by forwarding Resolve 01-03042024 
to the Board. The board, having reviewed the resolve, gave a negative recommendation at their March 12th, 
2024 meeting.  

 
 
City Budgetary Impacts: None known.  
 
Staff Recommended Action: Hold a Public Hearing and vote on second and final reading.   

 
Previous Meetings and History: December 18, 2023 CC meeting. Public hearing and passage of first reading on 
January 2, 2024. March 4 CC meeting.  
 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
 
Attachments: Ordinance 01-01022024, PB Motion, PB Staff Report, Resolve 01_03042024 



 

 

Richard S. Whiting, Ward One 
Benjamin J. Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 
Adam R. Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy M. Cowan, Ward Two 
Leroy G. Walker, Sr., Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

City Council Ordinance 

Ordinance #1-01022024 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Auburn City Council, that Chapter 60, Zoning, of the Code of 
Ordinances be amended as follows: 
 

Chapter 60 ZONING 
● ● ● 
 

ARTICLE XVI. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 
 
● ● ● 

DIVISION 5. APPEALS AND APPLICABILITY 
● ● ● 

Sec. 60-1382. Applicability. 

The provisions of this article shall apply to any development subject to review under division 2 of article XVI 
of this chapter, the construction of which has not been commenced on the date on which they become effective.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 7.4B) 

Sec. 60-1383.  Effective Date and Applicability Date of Ordinance #26-11202023. 

The zoning map amendment to this chapter evidenced by Ordinance #26-11202023 relating to the rezoning of 
approximately 60 acres in parts of City Assessor’s Parcel ID 289-001, 289-002, and 277-026 from the Agriculture 
and Resource Protection (AGRP) zoning district to the General Business (GB) zoning district became effective on 
December 9, 2023 pursuant to Section 2.6(C) of the City Charter.  In order to allow time for residents and property 
owners to become familiar with this zoning map amendment and for the City Council to further study and 
determine whether any additional amendments to this chapter related thereto are necessary or desirable, 
Ordinance #26-11202023 shall not become applicable until July 1, 2024. 
 

Secs. 60-13843—60-1400. Reserved. 

● ● ● 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Planning & Permitting Department 

Eric Cousens, Director 

60 Court Street  |  Auburn, Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov  |   207.333.6601 

 

Date: 03/20/2024 
To: Auburn City Council 
From: Auburn Planning Board 
Subject: Planning Board Motion on Postponing Applicability Date of Gracelawn GB Zone Change 

The following is the report from the Planning Board regarding delayed applicability and effective date 
for Ordinance # 26-11202023 pursuant to Section 60-1496 of the City of Auburn Ordinances.  After 
notice and Public Hearings held on March 12th, 2024, the Planning Board forwards this report to the 
City Council.  

PUBLIC HEARING/ TEXT AMENDMENT: Consider adding Sec. 60-1383. Effective Date and Applicability 
Date of Ordinance #26-11202023. This text change would delay the applicability date of amending 
approximately 60 acres in parts of Parcel ID 289-001, 289-002, and 277-026 from the Agriculture and 
Resource Protection (AGRP) zoning district to the General Business (GB) zoning district until July 1, 
2024. The City Council has proposed this text change to allow residents and the City Council time to 
determine whether additional amendments related to this item are desirable. The proposal was 
initiated by the city and is pursuant to Chapter 60, Article XVII, Division 2 Amendment to the Zoning 
Ordinance or Zoning Map.     

Summary and Discussion: Staff presented the City Council’s answers to the planning board’s 
questions as listed in Resolve #01-03042024. In discussion, an additional reason emerged for the 
request to delay the applicability date as prohibiting the developer from pulling permits under the 
General Business zoning while council considers the questions raised in the resolve. The Planning 
Board generally agreed that it was not in their purview to make zoning decisions considering 
speculation on what a property owner or developer may decide to do with their parcel(s).  

Motion: Riley Bergeron makes a motion to recommend that the City Council adopt and implement an 
applicability date of July 1, 2024, per Sec. Sec. 60-1383.  Effective Date and Applicability Date of 
Ordinance #26-11202023. To read as follows:   
 
The zoning map amendment to this chapter evidenced by Ordinance #26-11202023 relating to the 
rezoning of approximately 60 acres in parts of City Assessor’s Parcel ID 289-001, 289-002, and 277-026 
from the Agriculture and Resource Protection (AGRP) zoning district to the General Business (GB) 
zoning district became effective on December 9, 2023, pursuant to Section 2.6(C) of the City Charter.  
In order to allow time for residents and property owners to become familiar with this zoning map 
amendment and for the City Council to further study and determine whether any additional 
amendments to this chapter related thereto are necessary or desirable, Ordinance #26-11202023 shall 
not become applicable until July 1, 2024. Second: Ryan Smith seconds.  
 Vote: 2-5-0 Motion does not pass 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Motion: Dave Trask makes a motion to not recommend that the City Council adopt and implement an 
applicability date of July 1, 2024, per Sec. Sec. 60-1383.  Effective Date and Applicability Date of 
Ordinance #26-11202023 based on the fact that working with property owners is not within the 
purview of the planning board and should not be considered when making our ruling and judgement; 
the fact that the public has had plenty of opportunity to present before the board and have been 
listened to; and our previous motion to make a recommendation based on staff recommendations 
and public comment and feel that that at the moment there is no additional scientific or any other 
information of value that needs reconsideration. Second: Tim DeRoche seconds.  

Vote: 5-2-0 motion passes. 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Planning & Permitting 
Eric Cousens, Director 

60 Court Street  |  Auburn, Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov  |   207.333.6601 

  

 

Date: March 12, 2024 

To:  Auburn Planning Board 

From: The City of Auburn Office of Planning & Permitting  

Re:  Staff Report on Text Amendment on Applicability Date of Ordinance #26-11202023 

I. Public Hearing/ Text Amendment - Council Initiated: Consider adding Sec. 60-1383. Effective Date 

and Applicability Date of Ordinance #26-11202023. This text change would delay the applicability date 

of amending approximately 60 acres in parts of Parcel ID 289-001, 289-002, and 277-026 from the 

Agriculture and Resource Protection (AGRP) zoning district to the General Business (GB) zoning 

district until July 1, 2024. The City Council has proposed this text change to allow residents and the City 

Council time to determine whether additional amendments related to this item are desirable. The 

proposal was initiated by the city and is pursuant to Chapter 60, Article XVII, Division 2 Amendment to 

the Zoning Ordinance or Zoning Map.  

 

II. Background:  On December 18, 2023, the City Council proposed delaying the applicability of the 

zoning map amendment for parts of the Gracelawn gravel pit owned by JIG Aggregates LLC. The City 

Council held its first reading on ordinance 26-11202023 with favorable vote in the affirmative. On 

February 13th, 2024, the Planning Board held and then closed a public hearing on the text amendment 

forwarded by the City Council. At this public hearing, the discussion’s focus included the prior process 

of amending the zoning district around the Gracelawn parcels referenced above and the consideration of 

a delay in the applicability date. Most of the Planning Board indicated that they did not have enough 

information to forward a different recommendation to the City Council than they did in November, nor 

did they have enough information to recommend July 1st as the effective date of the zoning map 

amendment described above. The Planning Board requested a list from City Council summarizing the 

concerns about applying the General Business zone to the Gracelawn area prompting the proposed 

addition of Sec. 60-1383 and an explanation of reasons for reconsidering the decision and need for the 

delayed applicability date. As part of this request, the Board sought to understand how the concerns are 

related to watershed protection and the comprehensive plan. The City Council provided answers to the 

Planning Board’s questions in Resolve 01-02042024 attached.  

 

III. Planning Board Action:    Review the information provided by City Council (Resolve 01-03042024) 

and forward a recommendation to City Council to implement an applicability date of July 1, 2024, per 

Sec. Sec. 60-1383.  Effective Date and Applicability Date of Ordinance #26-11202023 and accept public 

input.   

 

IV. Recommended Motion: I make a motion to recommend/not recommend that the City Council adopt 

and implement an applicability date of July 1, 2024, per Sec. Sec. 60-1383.  Effective Date and 

Applicability Date of Ordinance #26-11202023. To read as follows:  

The zoning map amendment to this chapter evidenced by Ordinance #26-11202023 relating to the rezoning of 

approximately 60 acres in parts of City Assessor’s Parcel ID 289-001, 289-002, and 277-026 from the 

Agriculture and Resource Protection (AGRP) zoning district to the General Business (GB) zoning district 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

became effective on December 9, 2023, pursuant to Section 2.6(C) of the City Charter.  In order to allow time 

for residents and property owners to become familiar with this zoning map amendment and for the City Council 

to further study and determine whether any additional amendments to this chapter related thereto are necessary 

or desirable, Ordinance #26-11202023 shall not become applicable until July 1, 2024. 

 





 

 

Richard S. Whiting, Ward One 

Benjamin J. Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Adam R. Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy M. Cowan, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Sr., Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

City Council Ordinance 

Ordinance #1-01022024 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Auburn City Council, that Chapter 60, Zoning, of the Code of 
Ordinances be amended as follows: 
 

Chapter 60 ZONING 
● ● ● 
 

ARTICLE XVI. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 
 
● ● ● 

DIVISION 5. APPEALS AND APPLICABILITY 
● ● ● 

Sec. 60-1382. Applicability. 

The provisions of this article shall apply to any development subject to review under division 2 of article XVI 
of this chapter, the construction of which has not been commenced on the date on which they become effective.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 7.4B) 

Sec. 60-1383.  Effective Date and Applicability Date of Ordinance #26-11202023. 

The zoning map amendment to this chapter evidenced by Ordinance #26-11202023 relating to the rezoning of 
approximately 60 acres in parts of City Assessor’s Parcel ID 289-001, 289-002, and 277-026 from the Agriculture 
and Resource Protection (AGRP) zoning district to the General Business (GB) zoning district became effective on 
December 9, 2023 pursuant to Section 2.6(C) of the City Charter.  In order to allow time for residents and property 
owners to become familiar with this zoning map amendment and for the City Council to further study and 
determine whether any additional amendments to this chapter related thereto are necessary or desirable, 
Ordinance #26-11202023 shall not become applicable until July 1, 2024. 
 

Secs. 60-13843—60-1400. Reserved. 

● ● ● 

 

Passage of first reading on 1/2/2024 6-0 (Councilor Milks absent). 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 1, 2024   Order: 39-03182024 
 
Author:  Eric J. Cousens, Planning and Permitting Director 
 
Subject:  46 Fair Street – Dangerous Building Findings and Order Adoption 
 
Information: The City of Auburn staff has responded to complaints of dangerous conditions at the property over an 
extended period.  Dangerous conditions have been confirmed to exist at the property and the owner of the property 
has been unwilling or unable to resolve the issues. 

To address the issues at the property and eliminate the dangerous conditions the Auburn City Council held a 
dangerous building hearing regarding the above-captioned property on March 18, 2024, at 7:00 PM at Auburn, Hall, 
60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine. During the hearing, the City Council heard additional testimony from City Staff, the 
Owner and members of the public.  The draft Findings and Order of Demolition have been updated to reflect the 
record and are attached.  The Council allowed 2 weeks to work with the Owner to come up with a plan that could be 
considered to save the structure.  As of 3/28/2024, the date of drafting this Information Sheet, the following has 
occurred: 

The Owner provided an incomplete plan on 3/18/24.  Staff has met with him and outlined the needed elements to 
consider a delayed demolition date and option to repair including the following:  Updated Building Permit with plan 
details, Confirmation that the foundation is useable, financial capacity (likely an irrevocable letter of credit based on 
the discussion with Owner), scheduled an inspection for 3/27/2024 that was cancelled by the Owner and 
rescheduled for today, 3/28/2024,  Updated budget to match realistic construction costs based on standard 
estimating guides,  back taxes and Water/Sewer Liens have been paid(awaiting confirmation of check clearing), 
cleanup at the site has been started.   

Staff will provide an update on the status on Monday 4/1/24 to recommend a final Order.  The order will reflect 
what has been provided to show technical and financial capacity to remedy the dangerous conditions at the property 
as of that date and to possibly to extend demolition time to as long as 90 days to allow for compliance with Owners’ 
plan as shown in the draft Order.   

City Budgetary Impacts:  NA 
 
Staff Recommended Action: If the property constitutes a dangerous building under 17 M.R.S. § 2851, the Council 
should adopt the findings of fact and order the abatement of the hazardous conditions.  Staff provided draft findings 
and order that may be modified based on information presented between now and the 4/1/24 meeting.   

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

I concur with the recommendation.                                              Signature:   
 
 
Attachments: Information packet for 46 Fair Street, including draft findings and Order. Previous Information is 
available in the March 18, 2024 CC Meeting Packet. 



EXHIBIT A 
 

CITY OF AUBURN 
CITY COUNCIL 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
DANGEROUS BUILDING HEARING 

46 FAIR STREET (PARCEL ID: 337-002) 
March 18April 1, 2024 

 
1. On February 5, 2024, the City Council voted to set a public hearing under the Dangerous 
Building Statute (17 M.R.S. §§ 2851-2859) for March 18, 2024 to determine whether the building 
located on the property at 46 Fair Street in Auburn, Maine (the “Property”) is dangerous or a nuisance 
as defined in 17 M.R.S. § 2851(2-A). 
 
2. The Property is described as Parcel ID# 337-002 on the City’s maps, copies of which are on 
file at the Auburn City Hall, and is more particularly described in a deed from Allen F. Mackey to 
RedCoral Investments, LLC, dated September 14, 2021, and recorded in the Androscoggin County 
Registry of Deeds in Book 10877, Page 16. 
 
3. The Property is subject to (1) a mortgage held by 32 Ventures, LLC, dated June 23, 2022, and 
recorded in the said Registry in Book 11139, Page 27; (2) a mortgage held by F and F Ventures 11, 
LLC, dated June 26, 2023, and recorded in the said Registry in Book 11402, Page 64; (3) a water lien 
held by Auburn Water District, dated September 21, 2022, and recorded in the said Registry in Book 
11216, Page 186; and (4) a sewer lien held by Auburn Sewer District, dated September 20, 2022, and 
recorded in the said Registry in Book 11216, Page 192. 
 
4.  An attested copy of the Notice of Hearing was recorded in the Androscoggin  County Registry 
of Deeds in Book 11521, Page 144, as required by 17 M.R.S. § 2857. 
 
5. The record owner of the Property is RedCoral Investments, LLC, and notice of the March 18, 
2024 public hearing was served on its registered agent, Jeffrey R. Gnecco, at 62 Portland Street, Suite 
25, Kennebunk, Maine, on February 16, 2024.   
 
6.  Catherine M. Colombo, Esq. accepted service of the Notice of Hearing on behalf of mortgagee 
F and F Ventures 11, LLC, on February 21, 2024.   
 
7.  Michael Broadbent accepted service of the Notice of Hearing on behalf of both the Auburn 
Water District and the Auburn Sewerage District on February 21, 2024. 
 
8. The registered agent for 32 Ventures, LLC accepted service of the Notice of Hearing on behalf 
of the entity on February 27, 2024.   
 
9. On March 18, 2024, the City Council held the public hearing provided for in 17 M.R.S. § 2851.  
The City Council was represented at the hearing by Mark A. Bower, Esq.  
 
10. City Councilors Richard S. Whiting, Timothy M. Cowan, Stephen G. Milks, Benjamin J. 
Weisner, Leroy G. Walker, Sr., and Belinda A. Gerry, and Adam R. Platz were in attendance and 
participated in the consideration of this matter.  Councilor Adam R. Platz was not present.  



 
11. During the hearing, the City Council heard testimony from the following individuals: 
 

a. Code Compliance Officer (CCO) Jennifer Dick testified regarding her personal 
knowledge of the condition of the buildings on the Property resulting from her 
inspections of the Property on various occasions, which is also contained in her 
affidavit submitted into the record. She provided the City Council with several 
documents from the City’s property file for 46 Fair Street demonstrating its state of 
disrepair, including:  (1) Notice of Violation, dated November 2, 2022; (2) First 
Citation and Notice of Civil Penalty, dated November 21, 2022; (3) Second Citation 
and Notice of Civil Penalty, dated December 9, 2022; (4) Third Citation and Notice 
of Civil Penalty, dated December 28, 2022; (5) Fourth Citation and Notice of Civil 
Penalty, dated January 10, 2023; and (6) Fifth Citation and Notice of Civil Penalty, 
dated January 9, 2024.  Neither the Notice of Violation nor any of the Citations were 
appealed to the Auburn Board of Appeals.  The CCO also submitted into the 
administrative record various photographs from her inspections of the Property on 
May 5, 2023 and March 5, 2024, which demonstrate the significantly deteriorated 
condition of the Property.  The CCO stated that, in her opinion as a certified code 
professional, the building on the Property is a dangerous building under the meaning 
set forth in 17 M.R.S. § 2851.  The Council accepts and finds credible the facts set 
forth in the CCO’s affidavit and her oral testimony at the hearing.  

 
b. Code Enforcement Officer (CEO) Kris Beaudoin submitted testimony by affidavit 

setting forth testified regarding his personal knowledge of the condition of the 
buildings on the Property, , which is also contained in his affidavit submitted into the 
record.  The CEO further testified regarding the City’s efforts to secure the buildings 
on the Property in order to mitigate the risk and danger to the neighborhood and 
general public, and described his observation of the owner’s leaving the building 
unsecured, and the owner’s work on the Property without valid approvals from the 
City. The CEO’s affidavit also includesd copies of e-mail correspondence with the 
owner’s manager evidencing the City’s efforts to have the owner remediate the 
Property to no avail.  The CEO’s affidavit concludes  testified to his opinion that the 
building is dangerous, and his recommendation is to carry out the condemnation and 
demolition of the building because it is an dangerous residential structure, not safe for 
human inhabitation and poses a significant risk to the general public.  The Council 
accepts and finds credible the facts set forth in the CEO’s affidavit and his oral 
testimony at the hearing.  

 
c. Fire Chief Robert Chase testified at the hearing regarding his opinion, on behalf of the 

Auburn Fire Department, that the buildings at the Property are a fire hazard due to 
various violations of the NFPA fire and life safety codes, including issues with the 
wiring of the house that are clearly visible in the photos included in the record, and 
the debris in the building and on the Property that creates “fuel load.”  The Fire Chief 
testified that the unsecured building could result in illegal entry by squatters, increasing 
the fire risk, and that the proximity to the nearby school makes the building dangerous 
if children were to enter the Property or building.  Chief Chase The Fire Chief further 
testified that he would have significant concerns about sending his the City’s 
firefighters into the building on the Property in the event of an emergency fire, due to 



concerns about its structural integrity, trip hazards and other unknown hazards due to 
the building being unsecured, and the resulting risk to the safety of his 
firefighterspersonnel.  The Council accepts and finds credible the facts set forth in the 
Fire Chief’s oral testimony at the hearing.  

  
d. Three members of the public testified at the hearing, including Paul Farnsworth, 

Martin Doherty, and Janice Conant.  They described how the Property is a general 
nuisance to the neighborhood, due to the building being open to the elements and 
building materials, construction debris, and broken glass and trash strewn about the 
yard.  They also expressed concern about the Property’s proximity to the school and 
nearby playgrounds and the risk that the building poses to children who might wander 
onto the Property. 

 
e. The owner’s representative, Zahid Abid, appeared at the hearing and testified on 

behalf of the owner.  He testified that the owner purchased the Property two and a 
half years ago and has had issues with contractors completing the work that they were 
hired to perform.  He explained that the owner has an active building permit that was 
issued on September 11, 2023, and expires on September 10, 2024.  He presented the 
Council with a proposed plan for rehabilitation of the site that includes cleanup and 
landscaping of the site within two weeks, and completion of work on the building no 
later than June 1, 2024.  He also included copies of checks reflecting payments to bring 
his accounts with the City current (property tax, water and sewer). 

 
12. Based on the totality of the evidence presented at hearing, the City Council determines that: 
 

 a. The building located on the Property is a nuisance and constitutes a hazard to 
the health and safety of the neighborhood and general public due to the fact that the 
building is chronically unsecured and the owner has allowed construction debris, trash, 
and other materials to accumulate on the Property and escape into the nearby water 
body, Lake Auburn. 

 
b. The building on the Property is currently characterized by total loss, due to significant 

deterioration and obsolescence resulting in deferred maintenance and lack of needed 
repairs, the extended period of time being open to the elements, and the risk of 
collapse.   

 
cb. In its current state, the building is a fire hazard and uninhabitable and therefore not fit 

for the purpose for which it is intended.   
 

dc. Despite the City’s best efforts to secure the building, the building’s current owner 
leaves the building chronically unsecured, which makes the building an attractive 
nuisance for the community and further encourages and proliferates illegal activity, 
resulting in a significant risk to the general public.  

 
BASED UPON THE ABOVE FINDINGS, the Auburn City Council concludes that the 

building located at 46 Fair Street is structurally unsafe; unstable; unsanitary; constitutes a fire hazard; 
is unsuitable and improper for the use or occupancy to which the building has been put; constitutes a 
hazard to health and safety because of inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, obsolescence, or 



abandonment; and is otherwise dangerous to life and property within the meaning of 17 M.R.S. § 2851 
and is beyond repair. 
 

These findings and conclusions of the City Council shall be appended to and incorporated 
into the Order of Demolition dated March 18April 1, 2024. 

 
 



 

 

Richard S. Whiting, Ward One 

Benjamin J. Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Adam R. Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy M. Cowan, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Sr., Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 39-03182024 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Re:  Premises at 46 Fair Street, Auburn, Maine 

Parcel ID# 337-002 
 

ORDER OF DEMOLITION PURSUANT TO 17 M.R.S. §§ 2851-2859 
 

 Notice having been given to REDCORAL INVESTMENTS, LLC and all other persons and 
entities having an interest in the premises situated at 46 Fair Street in Auburn, Maine, described as 
Parcel ID# 337-002 on the City’s maps, copies of which are on file at the Auburn City Hall, and more 
particularly described in a deed from Allen F. Mackey to RedCoral Investments, LLC, dated 
September 14, 2021, and recorded in the Androscoggin County Registry of Deeds in Book 10877, 
Page 16 (the “Property”); 
 
 Notice also having been given to (1) 32 Ventures, LLC, holder of a mortgage on the Property 
dated June 23, 2022, and recorded in the said Registry in Book 11139, Page 27; (2) F and F Ventures 
11, LLC, holder of a mortgage on the Property dated June 26, 2023, and recorded in the said Registry 
in Book 11402, Page 64; (3) Auburn Water District, holder of a water lien on the Property dated 
September 21, 2022, and recorded in the said Registry in Book 11216, Page 186; and (4) Auburn Sewer 
District, holder of a sewer lien on the Property dated September 20, 2022, and recorded in the said 
Registry in Book 11216, Page 192. 
 
 A hearing having been duly held by the City Council at the Auburn City Hall on March 18, 
2024, which was continued to April 1, 2024; and 
 
 The structure located on said Property having been adjudged to be structurally unsafe; 
unstable; unsanitary; constituting a fire hazard; unsuitable and improper for the use or occupancy to 
which they have been put; constituting a hazard to health and safety because of inadequate 
maintenance, dilapidation, obsolescence, or abandonment; and otherwise dangerous to life and 
property within the meaning of 17 M.R.S. § 2851 and beyond repair, for the reasons set forth in the 
findings and conclusions attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein; 
 
 Now, therefore, it is hereby ORDERED that the structure located on the Property be 
removed within 30 90 days from the date of this Order, that the removal comply with all State and 
local requirements, and that the premises Property be left in a safe and sanitary condition, or that the 
nuisance be abated in a manner satisfactory to the City within 30 90 days from the date of this Order; 
 
 It is further ORDERED that the City Clerk cause attested copies of this Order to be served 
upon the persons and interest holders above-named as required by law; 



 

 

Richard S. Whiting, Ward One 

Benjamin J. Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Adam R. Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy M. Cowan, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Sr., Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 39-03182024 

 
 It is further ORDERED that, if this Order is not complied with, then the City Council or its 
designee is authorized to cause the removal of the said structure described herein and to bill the owner 
for the cost of all expenses incurred by the City, which bill must be paid within 30 days after demand; 
and 
 
 It is further ORDERED that in the event the owner does not pay the City for its expenses 
within 30 days after demand, a special tax shall be assessed on the premises described as Parcel ID# 
337-002 and located at 46 Fair Street, for all expenses as defined in 17 M.R.S. § 2853, incurred by the 
City in connection with the removal of the said structure and/or the abatement of the nuisance.; 
 
 It is further ORDERED that the City Clerk cause attested copies of this Order to be served 
upon the persons and interest holders above-named as required by law, and that any appeal from this 
decision must be made to the Maine Superior Court within 30 days of the date of this Order, in 
accordance with Rule 80B of the Maine Rules of Civil Procedure.; 
 
 
Dated:  March 18April 1, 2024    CITY OF AUBURN 
       CITY COUNCIL 
 
             
       Richard S. Whiting 
 
             
       Timothy M. Cowan 
 
             
       Stephen G. Milks 
 
             
       Benjamin J. Weisner 
 
             
       Leroy G. Walker, Sr. 
 

      
       Belinda A. Gerry 
 

      
       Adam R. Platz  



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 1, 2024    Order: xx-04012024 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk  
 

Subject:  Request to consolidate to one polling place for the July 9, 2024 Special Municipal Election 
 
Information: A Special Municipal Election is scheduled for Tuesday, July 9, 2024 to fill the recently vacated 
School Committee seat (at-large). Because it is an at-large seat and open to all Auburn voters, we would have 
to open all polling places which would require a minimum of 5 election workers at each location working 
approximately 15 or 16 hours each. 
 
Historically, turnout for these special elections is extremely low.  

• A Special Election was held on 8/12/2014 to fill a Ward 1 School Committee seat. Voter turnout – 16. 

• A Special Election was held on 4/23/2019 to fill a Ward 4 School Committee seat. Voter turnout – 18. 
 
Staff is recommending that we consolidate to one polling place (Auburn Hall) for this election. There would be a 
cost savings for consolidating, the Boy’s & Girl’s Club would not have to close (they typically close the day 
before and the day of each election), and it may be challenging to find appropriate staffing to staff each 
location because many people may be away on vacation in July.  
 
 
City Budgetary Impacts:  Consolidating would save the city approximately $3,000 or more. 
 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Hold a public hearing and recommend passage.  
 
 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 
 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  
 
Attachments: Title 21-A Sec. 631-A, and the Order 

 



MRS Title 21-A, §631-A. VOTING PLACES

Generated 
11.02.2023 §631-A. Voting places |  1

§631-A.  Voting places
1.  Establishing suitable voting places.  If the municipal officers determine that there is no 

building within a voting district that is suitable for a voting place, as described in section 627, the 
municipal officers may, subject to the approval of the Secretary of State, establish a voting place outside 
the voting district in a suitable building that is as close as possible to the voting district and as 
convenient as possible to the voters of the voting district.
[PL 2007, c. 455, §28 (NEW).]

2.  Consolidating voting places.  The municipal officers may, after public notice and hearing held 
at least 90 days before an election, and subject to the approval of the Secretary of State, consolidate 
voting places so that more than one voting district votes in the same voting place. When voting places 
are consolidated under this process, the voters from the different voting districts may vote in the same 
or separate guardrail enclosures in the building.
[PL 2007, c. 455, §28 (NEW).]

3.  Change of voting place.  If the municipal officers wish to change the location of a voting place, 
they must apply to the Secretary of State at least 60 days before the next statewide election, unless an 
emergency exists.  The Secretary of State shall design the application form.  The Secretary of State 
must approve the application before the voting place may be changed.
[PL 2011, c. 342, §21 (NEW).]
SECTION HISTORY
PL 2007, c. 455, §28 (NEW). PL 2011, c. 342, §21 (AMD). 

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include 
the following disclaimer in your publication:
All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects 
changes made through the First Regular and First Special Session of the 131st Maine Legislature and is current through November 
1, 2023. The text is subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. 
Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text.
The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our 
goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to 
preserve the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the 
public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.



 

 

Richard S. Whiting, Ward One 

Benjamin J. Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Adam R. Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy M. Cowan, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Sr., Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 42-04012024 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

Ordered, that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Clerk to consolidate to one polling place 

(Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street) for the Special Municipal Election scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 

July 9, 2024 to fill the recently vacated School Committee At-large seat. 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 1, 2024   Order: 43-04012024 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk  
 

Subject:   Adoption of 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan 

 

Information The City Manager has presented a 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan. By Charter, the City 
Council must adopt the Capital Plan before the end of the current fiscal year. 
 

City Budgetary Impacts:  This action is just adopting the plan.  
 

 

Staff Recommended Action:  Adoption of the 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Annual 
 
City Manager Comments:  

The 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan is a conceptual plan for the City’s long-term capital 
improvement program which is subject to change due to changing circumstances. 
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:      
 

Attachments: CIP 5 Year Plan 

 



CITY OF AUBURN     
CITYWIDE FIVE YEAR - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

FY25 - FY29
 Description FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT - City share
68,750$                 
15,000$                 
32,500$                 

TOTAL AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT 116,250$               -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            
CITY CLERK

Record Restoration 100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               
Fire Proof Vault Construction 100,000$               

TOTAL CITY CLERK 100,000$               200,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               
FINANCE

500,000$               500,000$               500,000$               
TOTAL FINANCE DEPARTMENT 500,000$               500,000$               500,000$               -$                            -$                            
FIRE DEPARTMENT

Fire
Engine 2 Reconditioning 250,000$               
Apparatus Replacement 1,100,000$           300,000$               110,000$               60,000$                 1,500,000$           
Rescue Boat Replacement 40,000$                 
Fire Hose Replacement 40,000$                 50,000$                 60,000$                 
Cascade air fill station system replacement 80,000$                 

Total Fire 1,390,000$           420,000$               110,000$               110,000$               1,560,000$           
EMS

Ambulance Replacement 50,000$                 275,000$               275,000$               40,000$                 
Cardiac monitors 35,000$                 35,000$                 35,000$                 
Stretcher Replacement 32,000$                 32,000$                 32,000$                 

Total EMS 82,000$                 310,000$               307,000$               75,000$                 67,000$                 
TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT 1,472,000$           730,000$               417,000$               185,000$               1,627,000$           
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Fiber Connection 50,000$                 50,000$                 50,000$                 50,000$                 
Security Camera Project 180,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               

TOTAL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 180,000$               150,000$               150,000$               150,000$               150,000$               
LA911 (Auburn's share)

Server Infrastructure Replacement 150,000$               
Communications Center 1,250,000$           
Dispatch Center HVAC 50,000$                 

TOTAL LA911 1,400,000$           50,000$                 -$                            -$                            -$                            
NSBA & Ingersoll

NSBA
Floor Rubber Rink #2 45,000$                 
Protective Netting Rink #1 20,000$                 
Two LED Scorebards Rink #1 150,000$               

Congressionally Directed Spending (CDS) Hangar Project

Fire Fighting Foam Trailer (Mobile)
Annual Pavement Management Program

Revaluation



CITY OF AUBURN     
CITYWIDE FIVE YEAR - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

FY25 - FY29
 Description FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Zamboni 200,000$               
Sound System Rink #1 75,000$                 
Rink board system w/glass for Rink 2 300,000$               
Sound System Rink #2 75,000$                 

Ingersoll Turf Facility
Floor and Rubber install outside of turf areas 35,000$                 
Replace Turf 300,000$               

TOTAL NSBA & INGERSOLL 35,000$                 515,000$               200,000$               375,000$               75,000$                 
Description FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

PLANNING & PERMITTING
Dangerous Buildings and Junkyard Cleanups 200,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               
Comprehensive Plan Program 400,000$               400,000$               400,000$               400,000$               400,000$               

TOTAL PLANNING & PERMITTING 600,000$               500,000$               500,000$               500,000$               500,000$               
POLICE DEPARTMENT

Firearm Replacement (Handgun) 96,000$                 
10 Pole Mounted Radar Signs 38,000$                 
Radar Sign Trailer 26,000$                  
Cruiser Camera System Replacement 200,000$               
Body worn Cameras 280,000$               
APEX Training System 75,000$                 
Digital Mapping Equipment 50,000$                 
TASER Upgrade 190,000$               
Mobile Data Terminal Replacement 135,000$               

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT 248,000$               76,000$                 200,000$               280,000$               286,000$               
PUBLIC SERVICES

ENGINEERING
Whitman Spring Cold Mulch 150,000$               

3,000,000$           
Reconstruction 1,800,000$           1,488,000$           1,434,000$           1,008,000$           1,267,500$           
Reclamation 1,500,000$           966,000$               1,200,000$           3,000,000$           750,000$               
Major Drainage 500,000$               500,000$               500,000$               500,000$               500,000$               
MDOT Match 1,500,000$           1,450,000$           1,266,000$           867,500$               1,300,000$           
Resurfacing 1,600,000$           847,684$               671,500$               691,900$               750,000$               
Retaining Walls 754,800$               40,000$                 
Pavement/Retaining Wall Assessment 125,000$               

150,000$               
Senior Center Parking Lot 500,000$               
Sidewalk Repairs 100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               
Downtown Parking and Walkability-Grant Match 400,000$               400,000$               400,000$               

TOTAL ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 10,825,000$         7,006,484$           5,611,500$           6,167,400$           4,667,500$           

Merrow Road Reconstruction

Lake Grove Park-Parking & Court Improvements



CITY OF AUBURN     
CITYWIDE FIVE YEAR - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

FY25 - FY29
 Description FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

FACILITIES & ENERGY
Discontinue Municipal Fire Alarm System 120,000$               13,200$                 13,200$                 13,200$                 13,200$                 
Auburn Hall Boiler/Mechanical Upgrades 550,000$               
Auburn Hall Reconfiguration/APD Relocate 500,000$               
Auburn Hall Building Automation System Upgrade 465,500$               

712,500$               
Auburn Hall Repointing Brick and exterior Masonry work 1,500,000$           
Auburn Hall Fan Coil Full Replacement 1,500,000$           

2,000,000$           2,000,000$           
Engine 5 Preliminary Design & Cost Analysis 50,000$                 

3,000,000$           
Engine 5 Separation Curtains for Diverse Workforce 25,000$                 
Engine 5 Electrical Upgrade (undersized for HVAC) 100,000$               
Engine 5 ERV 166,250$               
Engine 5 Front of Building Storefront Window 40,000$                 
Engine 5 Heating, Cooling and Ventilation upgrade 213,000$               
Engine 5 Building Windows 100,000$               
Public Works Space Needs Analysis/Addition 100,000$               
Public Works 506.5 KW Solar array(Est. cost prior to 650K rebate) 1,855,350$           
Public Works Addition/ Remodel/ New Electrical Service 6,000,000$           

Description FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29
Public Works Repoint Brick 100,000$               

3,225,250$           
Tot Lot Roof Replacement 25,000$                 

City-wide Facilities & Energy Total 2,695,000$           2,582,450$           8,718,800$           6,578,700$           3,825,700$           
Auburn Public Library
Public Library Building Envelope, Repairs & Design Cost Analysis 75,000$                 
Public Library Boilers Replacement 575,000$               
Public Library Rooftop Units (X3) 700,000$               700,000$               
Public Library Building Envelope, ADA Upgrades & Historical Preservation 300,000$               300,000$               300,000$               300,000$               
Public Library Building Lighting Upgrades 66,500$                 
Public Library Building Automation System Upgrade 270,000$               
Public Library Roof Coating 250,000$               

Auburn Public Library Total 650,000$               820,000$               1,066,500$           1,000,000$           300,000$               
TOTAL FACILITIES & ENERGY DEPARTMENT 3,345,000$           3,402,450$           9,785,300$           7,578,700$           4,125,700$           

PUBLIC WORKS
Road Maintenance Equipment
Replace front end loader (loading materials and snow removal) 250,000$               550,000$               
Grader 450,000$               405,000$               
Backhoe 110,000$               

Engine 2 Station Reconstruction

Auburn Hall New ERVS

Engine 5 Station Reconstruction

NSBA Solar 882.2 KW Solar Array (Est. cost prior to 1.3 Mil rebate)



CITY OF AUBURN     
CITYWIDE FIVE YEAR - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

FY25 - FY29
 Description FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Replace sidewalk tractor (sidewalk maintenance and mowing) 170,000$               170,000$               170,000$               170,000$               
Replace Sweeper 49 306,000$               306,000$               
Replace 30 Ton Trailer  38,000$                 
Replace Vactor Truck 590,000$               
Replace Western Star Pulp Truck 275,000$               
Replace Chipper 80,000$                 
Replace Loader Mounted Snow Blower 150,000$               
Hot Box Pavement Reclaimer 50,000$                 

Road Maintenance Equipment Total: 760,000$               924,000$               1,080,000$           595,000$               881,000$               
Recreation & Open Space Maintenance
Dog Park 240,000$               
Pettengill Softball Field Repair 265,000$               15,000$                 15,000$                 200,000$               
Field GPS Painter 63,000$                 
Festival Plaza 3,000,000$           

Recreation & Open Space Maintenance Total: 328,000$               3,255,000$           15,000$                 200,000$               -$                            
Electrical Improvements
Longley Park Renovation 110,500$               
Replace Boom Lift School and Public Works 77,000$                 
Annual Park & Walkway Light Replacement 200,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               

Electrical Improvements Total: 277,000$               210,500$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               
City Fleet Vehicles
Electrical Division - Vehicle Replacement 120,000$               
Replace Engeering Vehicles 100,000$               
Replace Service Truck 60,000$                 
Replace Car 93 50,000$                 
Replace 1/2 ton pick-ups 90,000$                 50,000$                 100,000$               
Replace One Ton Truck with Plow (2) 70,000$                 70,000$                 375,000$               
Replace 3/4 Ton Pickup  w Plow 117,000$               50,000$                 90,000$                 
Replace 7 yard plow trucks (plowing/sanding and roadway maintenance) 650,000$               650,000$               650,000$               975,000$               
Replace 12 yard plow trucks  (plowing/sanding and roadway maintenance) 325,000$               650,000$               
Police Vehicle Replacement 312,000$               267,300$               269,300$               271,300$               
Battalion Chief Command Vehicle Replacement 80,000$                 

180,000$               180,000$               
Public Safety Command Vehicle Replacement 450,000$               

Total City Fleet Vehicles: 1,509,000$           1,617,300$           1,414,300$           1,686,300$           1,025,000$           
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 2,874,000$           6,006,800$           2,609,300$           2,581,300$           2,006,000$           

TRANSPORTATION
Traffic Calming & Pedestrian Safety 200,000$               200,000$               200,000$               200,000$               200,000$               

300,000$               
Court Street - Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 150,000$               850,000$               
Washington Street at Brickyard Safety Improvements

Recreation Mini Bus replacement/upgrade



CITY OF AUBURN     
CITYWIDE FIVE YEAR - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

FY25 - FY29
 Description FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Neighborhood Safety Measures 100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               
50,000$                 50,000$                 50,000$                 50,000$                 50,000$                 

TOTAL TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 700,000$               1,200,000$           350,000$               350,000$               350,000$               
TOTAL PUBLIC SERVICES 17,744,000$         17,615,734$         18,356,100$         16,677,400$         11,149,200$         
RECREATION PROGRAMMING

Restroom Trailer 95,000$                 
Major Equipment Replacement 100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               

TOTAL RECREATION PROGRAMMING 95,000$                 100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               100,000$               
EDUCATION (See attached list) 1,000,000$           1,000,000$           1,000,000$           1,000,000$           1,000,000$           

TOTAL CIP 23,490,250$         21,436,734$         21,523,100$         19,367,400$         14,987,200$         

LATC Bus Replacement



 

 

Richard S. Whiting, Ward One 

Benjamin J. Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Adam R. Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy M. Cowan, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Sr., Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 43-04012024 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby adopts the FY 2025 - 2029 (5 year) Capital Improvement 

Plan, as presented. 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 1, 2024   Order: 44-04012024  
 
Author:  Jennifer Boenig, Downtown Coordinator 
 

Subject: Approving the Mass Gathering for Auburn Lobster Festival    
 
Information: The Auburn Lobster Festival is scheduled for Saturday, May 11, 2024, from 1:00-6:00 PM. The 
event will be held in Festival Plaza and on Main Street which will be closed with public works trucks and 
barricades. This free community event will feature live music, craft brews, food trucks and more.  
 
A mass gathering is defined as any gathering held outdoors with the intent to attract the continued attendance 
of 1,000 or more persons for two or more hours.    

 
City Budgetary Impacts: This event is budgeted through the Communications Department.     
 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Hold the public hearing and motion to approve the mass gathering.    
 
 
Previous Meetings and History: NA    
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   

 
Attachments:  

• Application for Auburn Lobster Festival mass gathering.  

• Public Notice  

• Order  

 













 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Benjamin Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Adam Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

City Council Order 

ORDER 44-04012024 

Timothy Cowan, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the Mass Gathering permit for the May 11, 

2024, Auburn Lobster Festival sponsored by the City of Auburn.  



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 1, 2024   Order: 45-04012024  
 
Author:  Jennifer Boenig, Downtown Coordinator 
 

Subject: Approving the temporary liquor license for an Incorporated Civic Organization for the City’s three 
signature events: Auburn Lobster Festival, Auburn Blues & Brews and New Year’s Auburn.     
 
Information: The Auburn Lobster Festival is scheduled for Saturday, May 11, 2024, from 1:00-6:00 PM.  
 

The City is applying for a Liquor License for an Incorporated Civic Organization to allow the sale of alcohol 
within the designated area of Festival Plaza and Main Street for the Auburn Lobster Festival. The City will also 
apply for the same license for the Auburn Blues & Brews event on September 7, 2024 and New Year’s Auburn 
on December 31, 2024.  
 
 Per MRS Title 28-A Liquor § 1071. INCORPORATED CIVIC ORGANIZATIONS 2. Up to 5 licensed events per year; 
one event per license. An incorporated civic organization may obtain up to 5 licenses under this section per 
calendar year. 

  
A Public Hearing is not required per MRS Title 28-A Liquor § 1071. INCORPORATED CIVIC ORGANIZATIONS 4. 
Application G. Approval by the municipal officers of the municipality in which the proposed licensed premises 
are located, which, notwithstanding section 653, may be granted without notice or a public hearing.   
 
 
City Budgetary Impacts: This event is budgeted through the Communications Department.     
 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Motion to approve the temporary liquor license for the city’s three signature 
events.    
 
Previous Meetings and History: NA   
 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments:  

• Application for a License for an Incorporated Civic Organization  

• Order  











 

 

Richard Whiting, Ward One 

Benjamin Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Adam Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

City Council Order 

ORDER 45-04012024 

Timothy Cowan, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the temporary liquor license for an Incorporated 

Civic Organization for the City’s three signature events: Auburn Lobster Festival, Auburn Blues & Brews 

and New Year’s Auburn.    



 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 1, 2024                       Order: 46-04012024 
 

Author: Glen E. Holmes, Director of Business & Community Development 
 

Subject: Annual Reports to Maine State Housing  
 
Information:  The City is required in accordance with the Certificate of Approval issued by the Maine State 

Housing Authority to provide them with an annual report for each of the Affordable Housing Districts and 
associated TIFs. 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Approve the Order as presented  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:    
 

Attachments: The Order and the Reports 

 
 
 

 















 

 

Richard S. Whiting, Ward One 

Benjamin J. Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Adam R. Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy M. Cowan, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Sr., Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 46-04012024 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the Annual Reports to the Maine State Housing 

Authority for Tax Year April 1, 2023 – March 31, 2024, and authorizes the City Manager to sign 

the annual reports for Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing Districts, #16 (Webster 

School), #21 (477 Minot Ave) and #22 (48 Hampshire Street), as provided by Business and 

Community Development Staff.   

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 1, 2024    Resolve: 03-04012024 
 
Author:  Phil Crowell, City Manager 
 

Subject:  Androscoggin County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan – Resolution of Adoption  
 

Information:  Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency submitted the Androscoggin 
County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 2024 update to the state for review by the State Natural 
Hazards Planner for the Maine Emergency Management Agency on December 15. The State Natural 
Hazards Planner completed the review and submitted the update to FEMA for final review and 
approval January 12.  
 
FEMA Region 1 Mitigation Division has determined the Androscoggin County Natural Hazards 
Mitigation Plan 2024 meets all applicable FEMA Mitigation Planning requirements (Local Mitigation 
Planning Policy Guide, effective April 19, 2023), except its adoption by:   

• Androscoggin, County of 
• Auburn, City of 
• Durham, Town of 
• Greene, Town of 
• Leeds, Town of 
• Lewiston, Town of 
• Lisbon, Town of 
• Livermore, Town of 
• Livermore Falls, Town of 
• Mechanic Falls, Town of 
• Minot, Town of  
• Poland, Town of 
• Sabattus, Town of 
• Turner, Town of  
• Wales, Town of 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: City Council adopts the Androscoggin County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 2024 
Update.  
 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Previous Meetings and History: None 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments:  

• Androscoggin County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 2024 

• Resolution of Adoption 
 
 

 



  

 

Androscoggin 

County  

Natural Hazard  

Mitigation  

Plan  

2024 

Prepared by Androscoggin County 
Emergency Management Agency 



 

Acknowledgements 
The Androscoggin County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan is a multi-jurisdictional plan, prepared by Androscoggin 

County Emergency Management Agency for county and the 14 jurisdictions within Androscoggin County. In the 

State of Maine, County EMAs coordinate with local governments to prepare a multi-jurisdictional plan. The 

Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency lead this effort with assistance the Hazard Mitigation 

Planning Team, the Hazard Mitigation Planning Steering Committee, and Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Teams. 

The activities that brought this plan to fruition were supported and funded by Androscoggin County and the 

FEMA Emergency Performance Grant Program  

Hazard Mitigation Planning Team 

Angela Molino Director, Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency 

Paul Leonard Deputy Director, Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency 

Spencer McKeown GIS Planner, Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency 

 

Hazard Mitigation Planning Steering Committee 

Angela Molino Director, Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency 

Paul Leonard Deputy Director, Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency 

Spencer McKeown GIS Planner, Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency 

Nan Johnson Senior Community Planner, FEMA Region 1, Mitigation Division 

Heather Dumais State Hazard Mitigation Officer, Maine Emergency Management Agency 

Dr. Samuel Roy Natural Hazards Planner, Maine Emergency Management Agency 

Jonathan Ross Senior Planner, Maine Emergency Management Agency 

Robert Chase Fire Chief, Auburn Fire Department 

Mark Caron Fire Chief, Lewiston Fire Department 

 

Jurisdictional Teams 

Auburn, City of  Livermore Falls, Town of 

Durham, Town of  Mechanic Falls, Town of  

Greene, Town of Minot, Town of 

Leeds, Town of  Poland, Town of 

Lewiston, City of Sabattus, Town of 

Lisbon, Town of  Turner, Town of  

Livermore, Town of Wales, Town of 

 

In addition to those agencies and individuals named above, a number of different state, local and regional 
partners contributed to this plan: 

Maine Historic Preservation Commission, Maine Department of Agriculture, Conservation & Forestry, National 
Weather Service-Gray, Maine USDA Farm Service Agency, UMaine Cooperative Extension, Community Concepts, 
Androscoggin Valley Council of Governments, Lewiston Housing Authority, Maine Forest Service, Central Maine 
Power, Co., Poland Springs Bottling Co., Department of Business & Community Development, City of Auburn, 
Maine Center for Disease Control, North East States Emergency Consortium, the public, businesses, non-profits 
and stakeholders who completed the Natural Hazard Mitigation Surveys.  
 
Thank you.  



 

Executive Summary 
The 2024 update to the Androscoggin County Natural 

Hazard Mitigation Plan was prepared by the 

Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency 

and in accordance with the Disaster Mitigation Act of 

2000. DMA 2000 requires states and local governments 

to prepare HMPs to remain eligible to receive pre-

disaster mitigation grant funds available in the wake of federally declared disasters. The Androscoggin County 

Hazard Mitigation Plan is a multi-jurisdictional plan, a collaborative process. In the State of Maine, County EMAs 

coordinate with local governments to prepare a multi-jurisdictional plan. The Androscoggin County Emergency 

Management Agency (ACEMA) is the lead in this effort with assistance from planning teams, the Hazard 

Mitigation Planning Team, Hazard Mitigation Planning Steering Committee, and Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 

Teams.  

Planning Process 
Hazard Mitigation Planning Team coordinated, facilitated, and documented the planning process, collected, and 

analyzed data, risk, and capabilities, sought participation through meetings, surveys, flyers, social media, the 

Androscoggin County EMA website, and emails. The Hazard Mitigation Steering Committee provided feedback, 

input, reviewed the planning process materials, documents, planning and outreach strategy via emails or in 

person meetings. Jurisdictional Teams attended the workshops, the seminar, and project planning meetings. 

Teams reviewed the 2017 Hazard Mitigation plan, the Natural Hazard Report, participated in the Natural Hazard 

Risk Assessment, and completed the jurisdiction survey, which provided the status update of the 2017 projects. 

The jurisdictional teams completed the project worksheets, which resulted in the identification of 

vulnerabilities, capabilities, and development of mitigation strategies for the plan update. The teams played a 

vital role in public outreach, through the dissemination of the surveys to the stakeholders and public through 

meetings, emails, and social media.  

Risk Assessment  
Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency conducted an All-Hazards Risk Assessment in 2022, all 

14 jurisdictions participated. The jurisdictions rated the impact that each hazard would have on their community 

using the information provided by Androscoggin County EMA through presentations from SME, hazard reports 

containing hazard definitions, county context and general consequence analysis. Resulting from the Natural 

Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment, a review of all available capabilities, and ranking by the jurisdictions 

Hazard Mitigation is any sustained action 
taken to reduce or eliminate long term risk 
to human life, infrastructure, and the 
environment. 



 

the following hazards have been selected for this Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan, Flooding, Severe Summer 

Weather, Wildfire, Drought, Severe Winter Weather. 

Mitigation Strategy  
The 2024 Androscoggin County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan update features new overarching goals designed 

to empower communities to navigate mitigation efforts through a fluid risk landscape, positioning the 

communities within Androscoggin County to address current concerns, future trends, policy requirements, 

vulnerabilities, and potential impacts from natural disasters. FEMA defines Goals as general guidelines that 

explain what should be achieved and defines Objectives as strategies or implementation steps to attain 

mitigation goals, 

and mitigation 

actions as specific 

actions that help to 

achieve the 

mitigation goals 

and objectives. This 

plan, combines 

goals, objectives, 

and actions to 

provide direction for Androscoggin County and all jurisdictions to reduce risks from identified hazards and 

improve resilience. All 14 jurisdictions participated, each action or project submitted for inclusion in this plan 

contributes to the county-wide mitigation strategy. The local mitigation actions or projects paint a picture, 

illustrating what each community prioritizes and their commitment to hazard mitigation and resilience.   
 

Plan Maintenance & Update 
Plan progress will be monitored through cyclical meetings 

with MEMA and/or local jurisdictions, as well as following 

federally declared disasters in Androscoggin County. 

Annually and following disaster declarations, ACEMA will 

review the hazards in the risk assessment and mitigation 

strategies to determine relevancy to variable conditions 

including land development in the county, as well as changes 

in state or federal policy to ensure that plan elements reflect 

current and expected conditions. At year three of the five-

year period covered by this plan, a hazard analysis and risk 

and capabilities assessment will be conducted. In 

collaboration with the jurisdictions, projects will be updated, 

and new projects will be added. The plan will come to fruition 

through a series of compounding meetings, the kickoff 

meeting, the seminar, and project planning meetings, 

including emails, surveys, and the website. Once all hazards, 

projects, maps, and all pertinent data have been updated, and public input recorded, the Androscoggin County 

Hazard Mitigation Plan draft will be submitted to MEMA for review and recommendations before the final draft 

is forwarded to FEMA for review and approval pending adoption (APA). After APA, the jurisdictions will adopt 

the plan for final approval and start another five-year plan cycle.  

 

GOALS 

• Minimize loss and disruption of life, property, and the environment 

• Encourage Continuity of Operations pre, during & post hazard events 

• Enhance Mitigation Capabilities 

• Increase Public Awareness and Support for Hazard Mitigation 

• Increase Resilience of Economy and local Resources 



 

Adoption 
The Androscoggin County Hazard Mitigation Plan 2024 provides a path by which local governments can follow 

to reduce vulnerabilities and lessen impacts from natural disasters. By adopting this plan, each community is 

agreeing to continue implementation of strategies aimed at mitigating hazards identified in this Plan. 

Participation in the planning process and adoption of the plan by a jurisdiction enables that jurisdiction to be 

eligible for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Assistance (HMA) grant programs, such as the Building Resilient 

Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) and Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA).  

Point of Contact. The Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency leads the effort to adapt and 

update the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. As such, ACEMA is determined to continue and improve 

public involvement by providing an ongoing opportunity for public comment and valued input regarding the 

hazard mitigation plan, so as to achieve that goal the ACEMA information is embedded below:  

Mailing Address: Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency 

2 College Street 

Lewiston, ME 04240 

Email address:     ema@androscoggincountymaine.gov 

Website:               Androscoggincountyema.gov   

  Telephone:           207-784-0147              

 

Intersection of East Rd and Avenue Rd, Wales ME, Road flooding. Source: Wales Fire Chief Scott Dimmick.  

  

mailto:ema@androscoggincountymaine.gov
https://androscoggincountyema.gov/index


 

 

Acronym	Definitions	
Acronym    Definitions 

ACEMA    Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency 
APA    Approval Pending Adoption 
BCA    Benefit Cost Analysis 
BFE    Base Flood Elevation 
BRIC    Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities 
BTM    Brown tail Moth 
CDC    Maine Center for Disease Control 
CDS    Congressionally Directed Spending 
CDWG    Community Wildlife Defense Grant 
CEO    Code Enforcement Officer 
CFR    Code of Federal Regulations 
CME    Coronal Mass Ejections 

CMP    Central Maine Power 
CPC    Climate Prediction Center 
CRS    Community Rating System 
CWPP    Community Wildfire Protection Plan 
DACF    Department of Agriculture. Conservation and Forestry 
DEP    Department of Environmental Protection 
DOT    Maine Department of Transportation 
DSP    Dam Safety Program 
DWP    CDC Drinking Water Program 
EAL    Expected Annual Loss 
EAP    Emergency Action Plan 
EMA    Emergency Management Agency 
EMP    Electromagnetic Pulse 
EMPG    Emergency Management Performance Grant 
EOP    Emergency Operations Plan 
EPA    Environmental Protection Agency 
FEMA    Federal Emergency Management Agency 
FERC    Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
FMA    Flood Mitigation Assistance 
FMAG    Fire Management Assistance Grant 
FMP    Floodplain Management Program 
GIS    Geographic Information System 
HABs    Harmful Algal Blooms 
HMA    Hazard Mitigation Assistance 
HHPD    High Hazard Potential Dams 
HMGP    Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
IA    Individual Assistance 
LHMP    Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 
LPDM    Legislative Pre‐Disaster Mitigation 
MUBEC    Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code 
MEGIS    Maine Office of GIS 



 

 

Acronym    Definitions 
MEMA    Maine Emergency Management Agency 
MFS    Maine Forest Service 
MHPC    Maine Historic Preservation Commission 
MRSA    Maine Revised Statutes Annotated 
MS4    Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems EAB 
MUBEC    Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code 
MWW    Maine Won't Wait 
NESEC    Northeast State Emergency Consortium 
NESIS    Northeast Snowfall Impact Scale 
NFIP    National Flood Insurance Program 
NHC    National Hurricane Center 
NOAA    National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
NOFO    Notice of Funding Opportunity 
NWS    National Weather Service 
PAR    Population at Risk 
RLF    Revolving Loan Fund 
PA    Public Assistance 
SBA    U.S. Small Business Administration 
SFHA    Special Flood Hazard Area 
SFM    Office of the State Fire Marshal 
SHMP    State Hazard Mitigation Plan 
SVI    Social Vulnerability Index 
TCI    The Climate Initiative 
THIRA/SPR    Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment/Stakeholder Preparedness Review 
UMS    University of Maine System 
USDA    U.S. Department of Agriculture 
USDM    U.S. Drought Monitor 
USEPA    U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
USGS    U.S. Geological Survey 
WMO    World Meteorological Organization 
WUI    Wildland Urban Interface 
 

 

 

 

 

 

   



 

 

Richard S. Whiting, Ward One 

Benjamin J. Weisner, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Adam R. Platz, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy M. Cowan, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Sr., Ward Five 

Jeffrey D. Harmon, Mayor 

City Council Resolve 

RESOLVE 03-04012024 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ANDROSCOGGIN COUNTY NATURAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION 2024 

 
Whereas, natural and man-made disasters may occur at any time, we recognize that to lessen the impacts of these 
disasters we will save resources, property, and lives in Androscoggin County;  
 
And whereas the creation of a multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan is necessary for the development of a risk 
assessment and effective mitigation strategy; 
 
And whereas, the 2 Cities, 12 Towns in Androscoggin County, as well as Androscoggin County are committed to the 
mitigation goals and measures as presented in this plan; 
 
Therefore, be it resolved, that the Auburn City Councilors hereby ADOPT the Androscoggin County Natural Hazard 
Mitigation Plan 2024 Update. 

AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES - City of Auburn  
 
 

Richard S. Whiting  Ward 1, Councilor& Signature above  Date 
 

     

Timothy M. Cowan  Ward 2, Councilor& Signature above  Date 
 

     

Stephen G. Milks  Ward 3, Council President& Signature above  Date 
 

     

Benjamin J. Weisner  Ward 4, Councilor& Signature above  Date 
 

     

Leroy G. Walker Sr.  Ward 5, Councilor& Signature above  Date 
 

     

Belinda A. Gerry  At Large, Councilor& Signature above  Date 
 

     

Adam R. Platz  At Large, Councilor& Signature above  Date 

     

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
City of Auburn 

City Council Information Sheet 
 

 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  April 1, 2024 
 
Subject:  Executive Session 
 
Information: Economic development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C) which premature disclosure 
would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the city. 
 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 
session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 
until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 
must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 
scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 
only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  
Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 
A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 
disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation 
or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  
(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 
(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 
conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of 
whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 
session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or 
interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 
prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  
 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the 
body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open 
to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  
 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 
litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of 
professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, 
municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  
 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those 
records is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 
consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an 
examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  
 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 
subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending 
enforcement matter.  


	0  Agenda
	1  Info sheet School FY 2025 Budget Presentation
	1a  FY 2025 Superintendent's Budget Message
	1b  FY 2025 Proposed Staffing Changes
	1c  FY 2025 Proposed Article Summary
	1d  FY 2025 Proposed Revenue Budget
	1e  Info sheet CM Budget Presentation
	1f  Info sheet Council Bgt and Priorities
	1g  City Council Strategies 2023-25
	2  Info Sheet Setting the date for the SBVR Election
	2a  Order 41-04012024 Setting the date for the SBVR
	3a  Minutes 03-18-2024
	3b  Minutes 03-25-2024
	4a  MRPA award letter 2024 Goddard
	4b  Communcation - Lake Stewards funding
	5  A_Info Sheet Applicability Date for AGRP Response to PB 3_20_24
	5  B_Ordinance text ammendment draft
	5  C_Motion_GB_Zone_Amendment_Postpone3_12
	5  D_StaffReport_Applicability Date_03_06_2024
	5  E  Resolve CC 3-4-2024
	5  F  Ordinance #1-01022024 re Adding Applicability Date to Ordinance #26
	6  A_Info Sheet 46 Fair Street April 1, 2024
	6a  24.03.25 Findings of Fact (46 Fair Street)
	6b  Order 39-03182024 46 Fair St demolition
	7  Info sheet 7-9-24 election consolidation
	7a  title21-Asec631-A
	7b  Order 42-04012024 Election consolidation
	8  Info Sheet 5 year CIP
	8a  5-YR CIP FY25-29
	8b  Order 43-04012024 5yr CIP
	9  Info sheet Lobster Fest Mass Gathering
	9  Lobster Festival 2024 Special Event App
	9  Order 44-04012024 Lobster Festival Mass Gathering
	10  Info sheet Lobster Festival BABLO
	10  Lobster Festival BABLO Application (1)
	10  Order 45-04012024 Lobster Festival BABLO
	11  Info sheet Annual Rprt - MSH
	11a  Annual Report to MSH
	11b  Order 46-04012024 Annual Rep to MSHA
	12  Info Sheet ANDROS. CO. NAT. HAZ. MIT. PLAN
	12a  ANDROS. CO. NAT. HAZ. MIT. PLAN    Executive Summary
	12b  Resolve 03-04012024 AndrCouNatHazMitPl2024
	13  Executive Session Info Sheet



